
   
 

 

 

 

  MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
 

Thursday, November 16, 2017, 5:00 p.m. 

 

CSB Campus Board Room 

300 Medical Drive 

Hampton, VA 23666 
 

 

 

 
Board Officers 

Wanda Rogers, Chair 

Pixie Killebrew, Treasurer 

Thomas F. Morehouse, III, Vice Chair 

Beatrice V. Dahlen, Secretary 

 

  Members of the Board 

    Golden Bethune-Hill Arva Davidson 

                         James Gray, Jr. June R. Owens 

   Sheriff B.J. Roberts Turner M. Spencer 

        Mary L. Stewart Timothy L. Supler 

       Venerria Thomas Elva Williams Hunt 

 

 
 

 

A CARF Accredited Agency



 
 

 

 

 

 

V i s i o n  
 

The Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board is the premier provider of 

behavioral health and intellectual and developmental disability services.   We are 

recognized throughout Virginia for our leadership, excellence and commitment to 

service.  We earn this distinction by creating a community where people can find their 

own strength and become self-determining. 

 
 

 

 

M i s s i o n  
 

To provide a comprehensive continuum of services and supports promoting 

prevention, recovery, and self-determination for people affected by mental illness, 

substance use, and intellectual and developmental disabilities, and advancing the 

well-being of the communities we serve. 

  



 
 

 
 

Strategic Planning Goals 
(2017 - 2021) 

 

Strategic Objective #1 

 

Continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary to 

maintain and further Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s 

reputation as THE premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s 

behavioral health system.  

 

Strategic Objective #2 

 

Pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports and 

prevention activities so that Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board 

can improve the quality of life for the individuals, families and communities we 

serve.   

 

Strategic Objective #3 

 

Celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of 

influence, through on going engagement of the community we serve.   

 



 
 

 

INDEX 

 

HAMPTON-NEWPORT NEWS COMMUNITY SERVICES BOARD  

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

Thursday, November 16, 2017 - 5:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

Documents                   Page # 
 

Cover Letter .................................................................................................................................. 1 

Agenda .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

Action Items .................................................................................................................................. 3 

Consideration Item ....................................................................................................................... 4 

Information Items ...................................................................................................................... 4-5 

Program Highlights ................................................................................................................ 6-26 

 

Enclosures 

- - - A-1. Minutes of the Meeting of the Board of Directors scheduled   

                      On October 26, 2017 ...................................................................................... 27-34 

- - -           Board Planning Calendars .................................................................................. 35-36 

 

Red Folder Items 

- - - Formal Invitation to the Newport News Adult Drug Treatment Court Graduation 

- - -      H-NNCSB Staff Appreciation Letter from Senator Mark R. Warner 

- - -      Media Articles 



1 
 

 

 

 

 

DATE: November 9, 2017 

TO:  Members of the Board of Directors 

FROM: Natale Christian, Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Meeting of the Board of Directors 

  November 16, 2017, at 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room, 300 Medical Drive, Hampton, VA 

 

Greetings Members of the Board: 

 

I wanted to extend thanks to all who were able to attend the 28th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon held 

yesterday afternoon.  I believe the event was enjoyed by everyone and has gotten us all in the holiday 

spirit. The families and clients look forward to this luncheon each year and are very grateful to participate.   

 

Attached for your review and consideration is the Agenda and Package for the Board of Directors 

Meeting for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board in FY2018 scheduled on 

Thursday, November 16, 2017, at 5:00 p.m.   

 

Please be advised that during the month of November, Members of the Budget, Finance and Audit 

Committee are scheduled to meet on Monday, November 13th, at 4:00 p.m. immediately followed by a 

meeting of Members of the Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee at 4:30 p.m. 

that same day.  Please mark your calendars and remember that Board Standing Committee meetings are 

open to all Members of the Board of Directors. 

 

We look forward to seeing you next week at the Meeting of the Board of Directors for the Hampton-

Newport News Community Services Board. 

 

 

NWC:gvm 

Enclosures 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

300 Medical Drive, 2nd Floor   ●   Hampton, Virginia 23666   ●   Telephone: (757) 788-0300 ●   Facsimile:  (757) 788-0968-- www.hnncsb.org 

http://www.hnncsb.org/


2 
 

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

 

Thursday, November 16, 2017, 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room 

 

A G E N D A  
 

1. Call to Order 

2. Remarks of the Chair 

 Introduction of Guests 

 Other Remarks 

3. Public Comment Period 

4. Action Items 

 A-1 Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 26, 2017  

 A-2  Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Recommendation 

 

5. Standing Board Committee Reports 
 Budget, Finance and Audit Committee – Review of Financial Audit 

 Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee 

6. Consideration Item 

 C-1 Newport News Drug Treatment Court Graduation 

 

7. Information Items 
 I-1 Addiction and Recovery Treatment Services (ARTS) 

 I-2 STEP Virginia  

 I-3 IDD Urgent Waiver Waiting List 

8. Program Highlights 

9. Adjournment  



3 
 

 

 

ACTION ITEMS 

 

November 16, 2017 

A-1. Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 26, 2017 

 

Issue:   Board approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on Thursday, 

October 26, 2017. 

 

Background:   Minutes of the Meeting held on October 26, 2017, are included in the Board 

Package for review by Members of the Board of Directors. 

 

ACTION:  Board approval of the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held on             

October 26, 2017. 

 

Enclosure: Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 26, 2017. 

 
A-2. Budget, Finance and Audit Committee Recommendation 

  

 Issue: FY17 Consolidated Financial Audit Report. 

  

Background:    Since FY12, the CSB has contracted with the accounting firm of Robinson, 

Farmer, Cox Associates to conduct its consolidated financial audit of the Hampton-Newport News 

Community Services Board (H-NNCSB) and its entities, namely, the H-NNCSB Property 

Company, Inc., Share-A-Homes of the Virginia Peninsula, and Peninsula Community Homes, 

Inc.  Each year these financial audits are required to be submitted to the Department of Behavioral 

Health and Developmental Services (DBHDS) by November 30th, as prescribed by our 

Performance Contract.   

 

Members will be happy to know that the firm has completed the consolidated financial audit for 

FY17, and the CSB and its entities have achieved an “unmodified opinion” which is an important 

signal to the Board and to our localities that we are continuing strong financial management.   

 

Representatives of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates will meet with Members of the Budget, 

Finance and Audit Committee at its meeting scheduled for Monday, November 13th, at 4:00 

p.m., to review the FY17 Consolidated Financial Audit Report.  Please note that this meeting is 

open to all Members of the H-NNCSB Board of Directors, and your attendance is encouraged. 

 

ACTION: Board acceptance of the FY17 Consolidated Financial Audit Report as 

recommended by Members of the Budget, Finance and Audit Committee. 

 



4 
 

 

CONSIDERATION ITEM 

 
C-1.     Newport News Drug Treatment Court Program Graduation Ceremony  

 

            Issue: Newport News Drug Treatment Court Program Graduation Ceremony. 

 

Background:    The Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board administers both the 

Hampton and Newport News Drug Treatment Court intensive substance abuse treatment 

programs for non-violent felony offenders.  These Programs offer an alternative to incarceration, 

provide holistic drug treatment services, and develop productive citizens in the communities that 

we serve.   

 

This year, the Judges of the Seventh Judicial Circuit request the pleasure of your company at its 

17th Annual Newport News Drug Treatment Court Program Graduation Ceremony.  The 

ceremony is scheduled to be held on Monday, December 4, 2017, at 3:00 p.m. in the Newport 

News Circuit Court, located at 2500 Washington Ave., in Room 2.  Please note that RSVP’s 

are due by November 20th. 

               

Red Folder Item:    Formal Invitation to the Newport News Drug Treatment Court Program 

Graduation Ceremony. 

 

ACTION:    Please advise Ms. Mercado of your availability to attend this event at your earliest 

convenience. 

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 

 
I-1.   Addiction Recovery Treatment Services (ARTS) 

 

Issue:    Opioid Addiction Has Become an Epidemic in Virginia and Across the Country. 

 

Background:    The Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board (H-NNCSB) currently 

provides a full continuum of substance abuse (SA) treatment services to include, Outpatient, 

Medication Assisted Treatment, Day Treatment, Substance Abuse Case Management, Drug 

Treatment Courts, Jail Based Services, Peer Recovery Services, and Residential Treatment for 

pregnant women.  

 

Update:  ARTS implementation provided the opportunity to enhance our services and improve 

access to those services. The newly initiated services continue to run smoothly as staff work to 

ensure clinically appropriate, accessible Substance Abuse Treatment Services.   

 

 

 



5 
 

 

I-2.  STEP Virginia 

 

Issue:    In order to meet the needs of the individuals served, we must offer more immediate 

access to services. The Same Day Access model is nationally recognized and ensures that 

individuals seeking services are assessed and linked to appropriate services in a timely manner. 

 

Background:     The System Transformation, Excellence and Performance in Virginia 

(STEP-Virginia) model was designed to assure more consistency of services provided by CSBs 

across the Commonwealth. Through a collaboration between the Virginia Association of 

Community Services Boards (VACSB), and the Department of Behavioral Health & 

Developmental Services (DBHDS), STEP Virginia is a system-wide transformation effort, and 

the recommendation of the Deeds Commission / SJ47 Committee.  This model promotes 

improved access to screening, assessment, and treatment.   

 

Update:  STEP VA is a primary component of the VACSB and DBHDS legislative agenda for 

the next biennium. DBHDS and the VACSB will continue to pursue additional funding during 

the next General Assembly Session to fully implement Same Day Access Services within all       

40 Community Services Boards across the state.   

 

The H-NNCSB has begun consultation with MTM Services. They are currently working with the 

organization on completing a GAP analysis to assess changes needed in our intake assessment 

processes.  

 
I-3. DD Urgent Waiver Waiting Lists 
 

Issue: The Commonwealth of Virginia Has Over 11,000 Individuals on the Waiver Waiting 

List.   

 

Background:  Although the H-NNCSB serves over 900 adults and children who have 

developmental disabilities in case management, residential homes, mobile crisis, and day support 

services, we have 70 individuals on the Priority One Waiting List, 246 on the Priority Two 

Waiting List, and 170 on the Priority Three Waiting List. 
 

Update:    Increased Waiver slot funding continues to be a primary component of the legislative 

agendas for both the Virginia Association of Community Services Boards (VACSB) and 

DBHDS.  H-NNCSB joins with the VACSB to request the funding of 800 additional Family and 

Individual Supports (FIS) Waivers and 250 Community Living (CL) Waivers.   

  



6 
 

 

CLINICAL PROGRAM HIGHLIGHTS 

 
CHILDREN AND FAMILY SERVICES 

Lisa S. Hogge, Director 

 
1. Activities Accomplished (linked to strategic plan/goals/objectives)  

 

Strategic Objective #3: To celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News 

Community Services Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of 

influence, through ongoing engagement of the community we serve.   

 

 In support of National Suicide Prevention Week, the H-NNCSB participated in the 

Hampton Roads Morning of Hope walk at Mount Trashmore on September 9, 2017, and 

the Out of the Darkness walk at Newport News Park on September 16, 2017.   

 

 
 

Pictured below is Nicole Jackson, TDT Administrator along with Behavioral Counselors, 

Tanisha Washington and Sha’Ron Radford. 

     

 
 

Strategic Objective #2: To pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, 

supports, and prevention activities so that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board can improve the quality of life for the individuals, families, and communities we serve. 

 

Children’s Behavioral Health Urgent Care  
 Dr. Ramiz Audi, Medical Director of Urgent Care, Julia Canestrari, Urgent Care 

Manager, and Richard Wilson, Comprehensive Outpatient Services Administrator, 

conducted a Region V training entitled Diagnosing and Treating Anxiety Disorders in 



7 
 

 

Children and Adolescents on September 22, 2017.  There were 35 regional crisis 

intervention staff in attendance including agency clinicians.(SO#3) 

 

Intellectual and Development Disabilities (IDD) Case Management 

 The IDD Case Management Program is extremely proud to announce that 5 new 

Medicaid Waiver slots were awarded to children served in our program.  There were 10 

individuals who met the urgent criteria and of those, 5 slots were received.  (SO#3) 

 Keisha Carroll, IDD Program Manager, participated in Project Search meeting on 

September 23, 2017.  Project Search continues to provide hands-on training to students 

with disabilities through internships at health-care facilities. (SO#3) 

 Ms. Carroll participated in Hampton City Schools Special Education Advisory 

Committee on September 26, 2017. (SO#3)   

Child and Adolescent Mental Health Case Management 

 The Hampton Truancy Response Team meetings commenced on September 27, 2017.  

This team, comprised of representatives from Hampton City Schools, Hampton 

Department of Social Services, and the HNNCSB, meets with children and families for 

the purpose of promoting consistent school attendance, success at school, and to offer 

access to community resources.  The HNNCSB serves in a liaison role and offers access 

to behavioral health services for any children and family members who come before this 

team.  (SO#2) 

 Keisha Carroll and Beverly Smith attended the Newport News Special Education Advisory 

Committee on October 17, 2017, providing an overview of the Youth and Family continuum 

of services.  Emphasis was given to services for individuals with developmental needs and 

access to case management and crisis intervention services.  Attendees included parents of 

children enrolled to Newport News Schools and School Administration personnel. (SO#2) 

 The Youth and Family Services Case Management programs celebrated National Case 

Management Week, with the theme Exceptional People, Exceptional Care, from October 9 

through 13, 2017.  Activities and events were held daily, focusing on team building and a 

show of appreciation for Case Manager’s work to empower children and families in our 

community.  Managers, Supervisors, and Case Managers worked collectively to make the 

week a success. 

 

Hampton Healthy Families Case Management 

 On September 7, 2017, Hampton Healthy Partnership and the HNNCSB gave a presentation 

to 25 Hampton Department of Social Services employees, representing foster care and child 

protective services programs.  The presentation offered an overview of the service 

continuum at Hampton Healthy Families, including the HNNCSB Healthy Families Case 

Management services, which are available to infants and toddlers and their families.  Young 

children in this program receive the Parents As Teachers evidence based home visiting 

curriculum, which promotes development, learning, and health for young children and their 

parents.  (SO#2) 

 The Hampton Healthy Families Case Management team joined in celebrating the Hampton 

Healthy Families Partnership 25th anniversary at an open house event on September 13, 

2017.  (SO#2) 

 A Parents As Teachers training was held in Richmond on September 26th – 28th, 2017, 

and was attended by two recently hired Healthy Families Case Managers.  This core 



8 
 

 

training provides the fundamental elements and strategies required to implement the 

Parents As Teachers home visiting curriculum. (SO#2) 

Newport News Healthy Families Case Management 
 Arsenia McCargo, Supervisor, attended the Prevent Child Abuse Virginia Supervisor 

Network meeting on September 13, 2017 in Richmond.   This meeting provides an 

opportunity for Supervisors of Healthy Families programs to collaborate and gain 

essential information about the Healthy Families America best practice standards.  

(SO#2) 

 Newport News Healthy Families employees attended a Children’s Behavioral Health 

Urgent Care Center Regional Training, on the topic of Diagnosing and Treating Anxiety 

Disorders in Children and Adolescents, on September 22, 2017 at the HNNCSB.  

Available training slots were offered to Newport News Healthy Families in the spirit of 

partnership and collaboration, providing opportunities for access to behavioral health 

training.  

 

Newport News & Hampton Court Services Unit 

 Dr. Nadia Boyd, Juvenile Forensic Administrator, and Tamara Dozier, Juvenile Justice 

Coordinator, attended the Restorative Justice meeting held in Hampton on September 

21st.  Judges will begin to order Restoration Services in appropriate cases and Tamara 

Dozier will continue to take part in this collaborative initiative.   

 Dr. Boyd met with Ellen Madison, Hampton Court Services Director, to discuss the 

redesign of agency Juvenile Justice Services to enhance collaboration and to ensure 

appropriate services are provided in an efficient manner.  Dr. Boyd and Ms. Madison 

discussed the newly executed contract between the HNNCSB and AMIkids.  Ms. 

Madison is receptive to substance use services provided through the H-NNCSB and 

invited Ms. Dozier and Mr. Banks to attend case staffings for probation and parole.  

 Dr. Boyd attended the NNJDAI collaborative meeting on September 6, 2017.   

 The NN Court Services Unit referred two individuals to the HNNCSB for outpatient 

clinical services through the newly executed AMIkids contract.  (SO#3)  

Juvenile Detention Services     

 Ms. Shica Simpson, Counselor at NN Secure Detention, has been identified to serve as 

the HNNCSB representative for the NN Youth Gang Violence Intervention Team.   

(SO#3)

 

Newport News Juvenile Drug Treatment Court (NNJDTC) 

 On September 22, 2017, the NN Drug Court Advisory Committee completed the 

revisions and updates to the Policy and Procedures and Participants’ Manual which 

finalized the expedited track for NNJDTC.  The 9- month track is designed for juveniles 

who have no past convictions or evidence sufficient finding on any charge that would be 

a felony if committed by an adult, unlike the traditional track.  The new track will be 

implemented January 10, 2018.  Additionally, the Supreme Court approved the 

conversion of the vacant Case Management position to a Therapist I position, to enhance 

clinical services within the NNJDTC Program.   (SO#3) 

 

 

 

 



9 
 

 

Therapeutic Mentor Services 

 A large number of the older youth in the program participated in a Back to School Ice 

Cream Social.  This group focused on bullying, hygiene, anger management, gun violence 

and grief.  Youth were able to submit questions to be addressed by the group 

anonymously.  Feedback was given and active participation in this group was 

demonstrated.    

 Several program youth also painted rocks with inspirational and motivating messages as 

part of the Kindness Rocks Program.  Over 40 rocks were decorated and then placed in 

locations for others to find as a random act of kindness.  

 Younger youth in the program were engaged in an activity in which caramel candied 

apples were made.  During this activity, youth were engaged in a discussion about goals 

for the current school year.   

 Additional outings this month included youth participating in a kayaking outing on Lone 

Star Lake, a scheduled outing to the Mariner’s Museum in Newport News and a Laser 

Tag activity. 

 The program continues to be consistent in achieving and surpassing the prescribed 

targeted billable units. 

 

Hampton & Newport News Therapeutic Day Treatment (TDT) Services 

 Mrs. Nicole Jackson, TDT Administrator, devised and implemented a creative plan to 

mitigate the clinical and financial impact of the high volume of TDT Re-Assessments 

that were due during the months of September and October.  Staff of the Youth and 

Family Services Division assisted in this endeavor.  Participating programs included Case 

Management, Mobile Crisis, Comprehensive Outpatient Services and Juvenile Justice 

Services.  The TDT program met its deadline of mid- October to complete all 300 re-

assessments.  The assessment process will remain a focus, as the program is seeing an 

unprecedented rise in program referrals. 

  

Prevention Services 

 Prevention Services has received guidance of the requirement to modify its logic model 

to separately highlight each substance targeted to for prevention actions.  Substances 

include Alcohol, Tobacco, Marijuana and Prescription Drugs.  We had previously 

identified them as Alcohol, Tobacco and Other Drugs, ATOD.  DBHDS Opiate 

Prevention funding from SAMHSA, is providing the funding and oversight.    

 HNNCSB Prevention Services is in the process of working with a statewide Opiate 

Prevention Coalition in the state of Pennsylvania to adapt their media campaign to prevent 

opiate abuse for our communities.  Funds used to support this effort include the $60,000 

Opiate Prevention grant from the Department of Behavioral Health and Developmental 

Services, DBHDS.  These grant funds will require a detailed service delivery strategy 

with definable outcomes which decrease the prevalence of opiate use in our communities.  

 Tobacco prevention efforts are continuing.  The process includes visits to each retail 

distributor to implement the data collection process on tobacco advertising and promotion 

in over 200 tobacco retail stores in the area of Hampton and Newport News.  Priority 

retail stores include those near youth servicing centers and retailers with previous tobacco 

retail violations. 

 H-NNCSB Prevention Services is a member of the Region V Suicide Prevention Task 

Force.  The DBHDS awarded a grant of $125,000 to each of the five CSB regions in 

Virginia to implement training and related suicide prevention activities.  Prevention 



10 
 

 

Services staff will schedule trainings in Mental Health First Aid and Assist to provide 

staff and other community members with skills designed to prevent suicides.  

 The Prevention Department has also started the first “Strengthening Families Program” 

this year at the Agape Hands Cathedral Church.  Several additional programs will occur 

during this fiscal year including one in the Juvenile Detention Facility in Newport News.  

  

2. Updates/Trends (local, state, federal) relevant to service area 

 

Hampton & Newport News Therapeutic Day Treatment (TDT) Services 

 Nicole Jackson, TDT Administrator, maintains her role as the Chair of the TDT Coalition.  

The coalition met on October 13, 2017 at the Blue Ridge Community Services Board.  

Several key issues were reviewed at the meeting to include the impact of the statewide, 

high volume of re-assessments, and the new guidance from DBHDS Office of Licensing 

regarding the requirement for “counseling” as a component of TDT.  

 

Therapeutic Mentoring Services   

 During the month of September, a large number of program participants attended the Fifth 

Annual Parents Against Bullying 1000 Youth March in partnership with the Newport 

News Mayor’s End Bullying Campaign. Throughout the month of September, youth 

made anti-bullying posters that were utilized during the march.  Please see pictures below. 
 

             
   

  



11 
 

 

ADULT CLINCIAL SERVICES 
Robert Deisch, Director 

 
1. Activities accomplished in the given month that is linked to our strategic plan and your 

service division goals and objectives                                                                                            _ 

 

Initiative: Develop a plan and process for the implementation of behavioral health and primary 

healthcare. 

 

Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

MHRSH Program Nurse, Nursing Supervisor and Program Manager continue to coordinate to 

ensure that all clients’ medical and psychiatric appointments were scheduled accordingly. Clients 

are accompanied to their appointments.  

    

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

PATH and NN Outreach are having client’s enroll in Health Care for the Homeless and utilizing 

SEVHS clinic on HNNCSB Campus. Utilizing clients with GAP insurance to seek and maintain 

primary health care appointments and treatment. Continue to use MCV for specialty services for 

the uninsured and those covered by GAP.  

 

Initiative: (1) Reduce billing errors and meet monthly revenue targets. (2) Consistently meet the 

CCS3 requirements each month. 

 

Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 
During the months of September & October 2017 the program did not meet the monthly revenue 

target due to there being two (2) vacancies because of discharged clients in the program. There 

were no reported billing errors for the month of September.   

 

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

CCS3 numbers are on track for the months of September and October. 

 

Enhanced Care Coordination Case Management 

The program has four vacant positions that will not be filled due to the implementation of CCC+, 

and the ECC program will not continue effective December 31, 2017.  Therefore they have not 

been able to meet their revenue or CCS3 targets. 

  

Adult Mental Health Case Management 

 Billing errors have been reduced by approximately 80%. 

 CCS3 requirements were met for September 2017; and are on track for the month of 

October. Revenue targets were met for Fiscal year and all billing corrections were sent to 

financial services. 

 GAP Revenue was at 50% due to being down 4 staff. 

 

Road 2 Home 

Program has met the CCS3 requirements. 

 

 

 



12 
 

 

Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile Crisis Response Team 

CCS3 requirements were met for September and October 2017. All billing corrections have been 

sent to financial services. 

 

Initiative: Provide opportunities for training and development that would allow staff to advance 

into leadership roles. 

 

Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 
One (1) full time staff accepted a position as a Peer Recovery Specialist II with Crisis 

Stabilization, which is a promotion from her current position as a Peer Recovery Specialist I.  

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management 

 2 staff accepted positions with the Western Tidewater CSB REACH program, as of 

November 1, 2017.  

 1 new Adult MH Case Manager was hired, with a start date of November 1, 2017.  

 

Road 2 Home 

During the month of September Centierra Boyd attended the Landlord partnership meeting. 

Centierra Boyd, Jasmine McClain, Shannon Denny and Michele Hassell attended a two day 

training in Virginia Beach that consisted of Creating a System of Care that Aligns with Housing 

First Model and Excellence in Housing Stabilization.  During the month of October Centierra 

Boyd attended online trainings that consisted of Housing 1st and Harm Reduction, Engaging 

Tenants and Volunteering Services. 

 

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 
Staff will occasionally cover for the program supervisor in her absence. Utilizing trainings in 

community and through the HNNCSB for further skill development. PATH and NN Outreach 

Staff attended a training for HMIS (Homeless Management Information System) new data 

standards on 10/26/2017. 

 

Initiative: Homeless Services will maximize outreach and engagement to reduce                             

homelessness in the community. 

 

Road 2 Home 

Case managers continue to attend the Service Coordination and Assessment Network meetings 

twice a month to present clients for housing options in the community and obtain referrals for 

Road 2 Home. The outreach workers continue to provide outreach to various sights in both 

Hampton and Newport News cities. Road 2 Home outreach workers will now add the South 

Eastern Family Project to their outreach schedule. 

 

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 
Newport News Outreach and PATH staff remain busy with outreach to area shelters. 24 new 

clients in PATH for September, and 28 for October. 25 new clients for NN Outreach in September 

and 27 for October. 5 PATH/ SafeHarbor/ Onward clients have moved to the community to 

permanent housing; 3 clients moved to Great Oaks Adult Apartment Community; 1 client moved 

to City Line Apartments in Hampton; and 1 client moved to Hilton Plaza Adult Home. Many 

other clients have transitioned to Adult MHCM services that have received GAP or Medicaid. 

GAP continues to be a great assets for this population and has made access to treatment much 



13 
 

 

easier. Outreach Specialists will now add the South Eastern Family Project to their outreach 

schedule. Presenting and accepting referrals from the Service Coordination and Assessment 

Network committee for referral to all housing programs.  

 

Initiative: Adult Mental Health Case Management will strive to eliminate the waiting list for 

those individuals with Medicaid. 

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management 
 During September and October, 5 Medicaid clients were opened; 18 were transferred 

from the Enhanced Coordinated Care (ECC) program; and 0 GAP clients were opened. 

There are no outstanding referrals during these months.  

 GAP referrals will begin being assigned during the first week of November. 

 

Initiative: Maintain a strong working relationship with MCOs to improve the integration of 

Behavioral Health and Primary Care. 

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management 

Supervisors and case managers continue to be accessible to the care managers from the MCO’s 

to answer questions and provide assistance 

 

Initiative: Adult Mental Health Case Management will work to improve the care coordination 

and linkage to Behavioral Health and Primary Care.  

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management 

Case Managers continue to link clients to Southeastern Virginia Health System when they do not 

have an assigned Primary Care Physician and continue to encourage clients to obtain annual 

physicals, attend all medical appointments, and to address medical needs on the Individualized 

Service Plan and during collateral or face to face contacts. 

 

Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile Crisis Response Team 

The discharge planning teams continue to provide linkages to primary care providers. The staff 

have utilized the Sentara Grant at Southeastern Virginia Health Systems to gain access to medical 

care for indigent consumers.  

 

2. Productivity/utilization status report as it relates to service barriers and/or expanded access  

 

Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

One (1) client admitted to Riverside Regional Medical Center on 8/6/17, and transferred to 

Newport News Rehabilitation & Nursing Center. The client was discharged from Transcend 

Place in September 2017 due to needing a higher level of care. Currently there are two (2) client 

vacancies. Working closely with Eastern Hospital discharge planners to fill these vacancies.  

 

Enhanced Care Coordination Case Management 

8 Medicaid clients transferred to Adult MH Case Management in September; and 10 transferred 

in October. There are currently 16 enrolled and due to the program ending December 31, 2017 

no new referrals will be accepted. 

 

 



14 
 

 

Road 2 Home 

 During the month of September Road 2 Home outreached a total of 41 individuals, pre-

enrolled 2, and housed 3.  

 During the month of October Road 2 Home outreached a total of 37 individuals, pre-

enrolled 8, and housed 2. 

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management 

For September, there were a total of 454 clients enrolled in AMHCM, 351 of those are Medicaid 

and 26 are GAP. 8 more Medicaid clients are pending and we should be able to enter their 

authorizations next month. AMHCM is down 4 Case Managers at this time. Referrals are usually 

assigned every 2 weeks, and will resume the first week in November 2017. 

 

 Waiting List  

1. Medicaid- 41 Turnaround time is usually 2 weeks 

2. GAP- 37 Turnaround time is usually 4 to 6 weeks 

3. Geriatric- 13 

 

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

Onward Permanent Supportive Housing Program has 16 clients with one male vacancy. Safe 

Harbor Permanent Supportive Housing Program is full at 24 clients. Emergency Housing/Shelter 

full the entire months of September and October (capacity is 8). 

 

Reinvestment Case Management, Consumer Monitoring and Mobile Crisis Response Team 

 

Reinvestment Case Management - In the month of September, there were 13 acute care 

admissions, and 16 discharges. In the month of October, there were 21 acute care admissions, 

and 18 discharges.  

 

Consumer Monitoring - In the month of September, there were 94 consumers served. Staff 

monitor civil and Not Guilty by Reason of Insanity (NGRI) forensic cases. In the month of 

September, there were 16 discharges from Eastern State Hospital. In the month of September, 

there were 56 NGRI consumers served; 33 were in State Hospitals (Eastern and Central State), 

23 were on conditional release in the community.  

 

In the month of October, there were 92 consumers served. In the month of October, there were 

19 discharges from Eastern State Hospital, which included 4 consumers discharged to the new 

Regional Housing Program, Tidewater Cove. In the month of October, there were 54 NGRI 

consumers served; 36 were in State Hospitals (Eastern and Central State) and 19 were on 

conditional release in the community. One consumer was unconditionally released from ESH, 

and two other consumers were removed from conditions who were in the community.     

 

Mobile Crisis Response Team - In the month of September, there were 42 consumers served. 

Staff completed 4 short GAP assessments in this month.   In the month of October, there were 43 

individuals served. Staff completed 8 short GAP assessments in this month. 

 

 

 

 



15 
 

 

3. Updates/trends (local, state, federal) relevant to your service area  

 

PATH/Newport News Outreach/Safe Harbors/Project Onward 

Increasing number of call for housing services for families with children continue this month. 

Always more in need of shelter than available shelter beds. Winter shelters are due to open in 

October/November. They will be a welcome site!  

 

4.  Service recognitions and/or other items you want to brag about that is relevant to your 

service area__________________________________________________________________ 

 

Regional Supervised Housing / Transcend Place 

Pamela Williams promoted to Peer Recovery Specialist II, and is currently working for Crisis 

Stabilization.  The program remains on target with the revenue, despite the client vacancies. 

 

Adult Mental Health Case Management (AMHCM) 

We met our revenue targets for the year; and met CCS3 targets for the month of September. 

AMHCM also started a food pantry to assist our clients in need.  

 
ADDICTION AND RECOVERY TREATMENT SERVICES 

Anthony Crisp, Director 

 
Strategic Objective #1: To continue to develop the administrative systems and service array 

necessary to maintain and further the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s 

reputation as the premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s behavioral health 

system. 

 

 ARTS will continue to build-out its array of treatment and recovery services as 

community demands dictates and funding is available. (1A, 1D) 

 

 Our South-Eastern Family Project (SEFP) staff met with Quality Management 

to explore the possibility of expanding the residential treatment options at the 

SEFP’s location. SEFP is currently licensed as a “Clinically Managed High-

Intensity (3.5) Residential Service.” We also want to be licensed as a “Clinically 

Managed Low-Intensity (3.1) Residential Service.” This co-licensure, at the same 

location, will allow our clients to continue their residential treatment services, 

however less intensive, at SEFP instead of being discharged and transitioned to a 

residential program 2-4 hours away. This option should improve family 

engagement and reduce relapse possibilities.  

 

 ARTS will examine workflow, infrastructure and staffing to assure rapid access to 

treatment. (1E) 

 

 Partners in Recovery (PIR) have adjusted its workflow processes to assure rapid 

access to persons in needs; some examples include: 

o Started Readiness Groups for the Next Step Psychosocial Program and for 

the Addiction and Co-occurring Treatment Services for those persons on 



16 
 

 

the waiting list. These readiness groups will keep persons in engaged until 

a treatment slot is available. 

o Our psychiatrist has agreed to a “flexible schedule” as to improve our 

responsiveness to hospital discharges and reinvestment clients. 

 Hampton Roads Clinic (HRC) provides screening of potential clients within 24 

hours of initial contact and program enrollment within 7 days or less. SEFP can 

also provide initial screening within 24 hours and arrange a face to face 

assessment within 48 hours. 

 We have staffing vacancies in all of our programs and we are interviewing and 

working cooperatively with Human Resources to quickly fill needed positions. 

 

 ARTS leadership will monitor financial processes tied to service delivery to assure 

revenue projections are met. (1B) 

 

 Program Managers continues to meet with the Financial Services monthly, to 

review their program budgets and billing reports to ensure that all billable services 

are completed within the billing cycle, as well as to ensure that services are billed 

accurately; primarily, new services  

 

 ARTS will continue to provide up-to-date training to staff to meet the changing needs of 

the behavioral healthcare environment, which includes public policy changes, population 

demographics and various evidence-based practices that better meet the needs of the 

people we will serve. (1G) 

 

 Project Link/Case Management 
o The Program Manger provided training for case managers on completing 

the Chemical Dependency screen in Profiler. 

o The program hosted a webinar: “Recovery, Prevention and Hope: Live 

Stream Panel of National Experts on Opioid Equip Faith and Community 

Leaders” provided by The National Department of Health for all program 

staff. 

 

 South-Eastern Family Project (SEFP) 
 SEFP staff continue to be oriented to the program and are required to complete a 

number of agency and program required trainings. The Change DVD is part of the 

orientation process for all staff.  

 

 Partners in Recovery (PIR), in collaboration with the other programs under the 

ARTS division; secured an ASAM training module, through The Change 

Companies, to provide training for qualified addiction professionals on how to 

utilize the ASAM Placement Criteria. This training is an adherence to new 

DBHDS, DMAS and MCO’s guidelines.  

 

 Hampton Roads Clinic (HRC) staff completed Clinical Documentation Training 

Refresher on September 28, 2017; and completed a team building training on 

October 4, 2017. 

 



17 
 

 

Strategic Objective #2: To pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, 

supports, and prevention activities so that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services 

Board can improve the quality of life for the individuals, families, and communities we serve. 

 

 ARTS leadership will work closely with DMAS, DBHDS and CCC+ MCOs to minimize 

out-of-pocket expenses to person served, but maximize revenues from third-party payers. 

(2B)  

 

 PIR Program Manager attended the monthly Quality Management and CCC+ 

meetings. 

 

 Due to the demand for medically monitored withdrawal services (detox services) 

and clinically managed residential services, our SARPOS (substance abuse 

purchase of services) funds are nearly depleted. We have requested additional 

SARPOS funds from the DBHD. 

 The program manager from SEFP and the ARTS Director participated in the 

DMAS’ sponsored meeting/training on “ARTS and Pregnant Women’s Services” 

on September 13. Keynote speakers included, Dr. Mishka Terplan, Professor of 

Obstetric Psychiatry and Associate Director Addiction Medicine, Virginia 

Commonwealth University, DMAS Addiction Medicine Consultant and Dr. 

Matthew Keats, former Medical Director, Behavioral Health Anthem Health 

Keepers Plus and now Medical Director of Behavioral Health DMAS. The 

discussion centered on “meeting ASAM requirements and the role of managed 

care” and how those two entities will change how pregnant women will receive 

addiction services. 

 

 The ARTS Director participated in the Virginia Drug Treatment Court Advisory 

Planning and Development Committee held on October 10th. Major items of 

discussion were how to expand and fund drug courts in the Commonwealth and 

the difficulties of recruiting peer specialists to work in drug courts because of the 

state Barrier Crimes law. 

 

 ARTS leadership will work with the agency’s Communication and Development Director 

to promote and make the community aware our service continuum; in particular, our 

residential services for pregnant women and children. (2B) 

 

 In September, a Newport News Drug Treatment Court participant, joined Tony 

Crisp, ARTS Director, on the WHRO’s Another View Radio Show, to discuss the 

opioid epidemic from an African-American perspective. 

 

  Several ARTS program managers, along with the ARTS Director, was 

interviewed by a Daily Press reporter, for a follow-up story he was doing on 

addiction treatment and recovery services. 

 

 Staff, across the ARTS Division, worked with the Communication and 

Development Director on promoting and participating in September’s Recovery 

Month activities. 

 



18 
 

 

Strategic Objective #3: To celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News 

Community Services Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of 

influence, through ongoing engagement of the community we serve.   

 

 All programs will obtain feedback from person served through forums, surveys and 

suggestion boxes. This feedback will be used to enhance services and improve customer 

service. (3C) 

 

 South-Eastern Family Project: During this time period, all surveys have 

reflected strong satisfaction with services at SEFP. 

 

 Partners in Recovery: 
o Next Step received 10 favorable survey responses for this Quarter – 1 

undecided. 

o PIR Counseling Services received 27 favorable survey responses for this 

Quarter – 1 unfavorable regarding financial services. 

 

 Hampton Roads Clinic received the following feedback via the feedback box in 

September-October: 

o A client asks management to review its early morning hour medication 

check in system; especially, for working clients. 

o  A client expressed concern, regarding the front desk staff, asking about 

his or her assigned counselor (i.e. who is your counselor) when he/she 

asked a question.  Front desk staff have been trained to ask that question; 

so the client can be directed to the appropriate clinical staff to address the 

client’s concerns. 

o A client expressed his/her dissatisfaction with program changes. Changes 

include being more person-centered, which may require a client to attend 

more counseling sessions, less take home medications, a different group 

and even a different counselor to work with. 

 

 ARTS leadership will continue to work with our community partners and stakeholders to 

enhance services, to improve service accessibility and increase service utilization in all 

program area. (3B, 3C) 

 

 Community partnerships and services were provided as scheduled at the Newport 

News Drug Treatment Court (NNDC). Staff and participants actively participated 

in several events in honor of Recovery Month.  A sponsor night was held to thank 

the sponsors from NA/AA that support and aid program participants in their 

recovery.  Staff and participants went bowling at Spare Time Bowling.  This 

activity was also a way to teach the importance of sober leisure activities. 

 Community partnerships and services were provided as scheduled at the Hampton 

Veterans Track.  In honor of Recovery Month, participants participated in the 

Recovery Walk sponsored by HNNCSB. 

 In an effort to continue effective working relationships with Mary Immaculate 

Hospital, the ARTS Case Management Program Manager met with the hospital 

Care Coordinators. The Program Manager provided Project Link and agency 



19 
 

 

program information and reviewed the process for making postpartum referrals to 

the program in accordance with state mandates.  

 The ARTS Case Management Program Manager also met with the SEFP Program 

Manager, the H-NNCSB Property and Resource Development Director and the 

Hampton Human Services Community Partnership Supervisor to develop an 

effective working relationship to better support pregnant and postpartum women 

discharging from South Eastern Family Project back in to the community. With a 

shorter duration in SEFP, due to managed care requirements, housing assistance 

is a greater need than ever for SEFP individuals leaving treatment. 

 Community partnerships were maintained and services were provided as 

scheduled at Hampton Drug Treatment Court (HDC).  Rodney Freeman and Felita 

Steverson participated with the CSB and SAARA of the Peninsula in organizing 

various recovery related events in honor of Recovery Month 

 The HDC held its thirteenth graduation on October 30th. Seven (7) participants 

successfully completed the program.  Congressman Bobby Scott was the keynote 

speaker.  

 Sherry Glasgow, Drug Treatment Court Program Administrator, provided a 

presentation to the Hampton Public Defender’s Office in an effort to educate the 

new attorney’s on drug court and the services provides.  She also informed them 

of the CSB’s new IOP and the availability of Suboxone. 

 Sherri Wiggins, SEFP Peer Recovery Specialist, worked with community 

providers (Goodwill & job seekers reentry program) to assist our SEFP clients 

with job readiness skills.  

 The ARTS Director met with the regional director of the Virginia Veteran and 

Family Support Program. We exchanged services information; with the goal of 

providing better and accessible services to veterans. 

 The ARTS Director provided an overview of ARTS services to Hampton 

University (HU) graduate counseling students on September 20 as part of HU 

Recovery Month activities. Additionally, Eddie Wiggins, certified peer specialist 

at Next Step, was also a speaker and received rave reviews. 

 

 The ARTS Director will continue to participate on the agency-wide dashboard team to 

improve performance measures and to identify best value and practice approaches to 

planning and delivering quality behavioral health care services. (3A) 

 

 The Dashboard Team met to establish a board-wide “waiting list” Protocol. This 

protocol defines “waiting list” for the H-NNCSB and establishes a process to 

collect, manage and to monitor the waiting list.  

 

5. Other Items of interest 

 

 Next Step Psychosocial Program was invited to and attended the Alumni Reunion 

Cookout at Eastern State Hospital. 

 Partners In Recovery (PIR) Program Manager was a speaker for a Community Resource 

class at Thomas Nelson Community College. 

 



20 
 

 

MEDICAL SERVICES 
       Baltej S. Gill, M.D., D.F.A.P.A., Sr. Medical Director 

                  Anne Whitaker, RNC, BS, Director of Nursing, and Adult Outpatient Services 

 
1. Division Goals 

 

Promote wellness and grow the integration of primary care and onsite pharmacy services 

 

PACT continues to provide group activities for the individuals they serve, specifically a Walking 

group, a Healthy Living group, and a Women’s Assertiveness group.  

PACT is pleased with their successful launch to Genoa and is very happy with their service.  

PACT is pleased as well with the care provided at SEVHS and enjoys the convenience of the co-

location.  Staff continue to encourage all of their individuals to utilize this service for their PCP 

needs. 

 

Bright Beginnings is linking individuals to SEVHS for primary care services if primary care is 

needed.  Staff assist in contacting SEVHS for scheduling appointments and assistance in caring 

for medical needs.  

Individuals at PSR are utilizing Genoa Pharmacy services and find it very convenient when they 

are at program and can walk to building 200 for their medication pick- ups.  Staff, as well find 

the pharmacy convenient in advocating for individuals and often assist individuals with getting 

medication filled when out of meds or medication concerns arise.  

The day program offers a daily walking group for physical fitness as well as various community 

outings to encourage community integration. 

PSR encourages healthy eating and weight management through daily walking groups, fitness 

groups, nutrition groups and a presentation on October 25 with Virginia Cooperative Extension 

to discuss Nutrition Basics was successful.   

The Health Incentives Program will resume next year. 

 

ACOS actively refers to SEVHS and appreciates the walk in availability for individuals having 

urgent needs.  Genoa Pharmacy Services continues to grow here on campus. Individuals and their 

family members are benefiting from the extra time and care provided by the staff at Genoa.  

Genoa participated in Breast Cancer Awareness Day and distributed pamphlets and encouraged 

women to care for their bodies.  They continue to offer water and encourage it as an alternative 

to sodas and other sugary drinks.  

ACOS is encouraging participation in Chronic Disease Self-Management workshop classes for 

individuals with chronic health concerns including: heart disease, hypertension, arthritis, asthma 

and diabetes.       

 

Retain current and prospective Physicians, Nurses, Therapists, Counselors and          

Coordinators to allow timely access to services  

 

Adult Comprehensive Outpatient Services (ACOS) remains down two psychiatric provider 

positions. We have a growing wait list for Medication Management Services.  We continue to 

prioritize appointments for individuals discharged from Correctional facilities or hospital on 

TDO, and those at risk for hospitalization. 

 



21 
 

 

We look forward to Lisa Kelleher, Nurse Practitioner joining ACOS later next month and we 

continue to actively recruit for Psychiatric providers. 

            

We are happy to announce the addition of Charlena Cuffy, LCSW to ACOS Therapy Services.  

She will be sharing her time at Bright Beginnings.  There is currently 54 individuals on the 

Therapy Services Wait list. 

 

Governor’s Access Plan for the Seriously Mentally Ill (GAP) has no wait to complete short or 

long assessments.   12 Long Assessments and 15 Short Assessments were completed in the month 

of October. 

 

PACT has filled their vacant positions and new staff will start November 1.  There is 5 currently 

5 individuals on wait list for PACT services.   

 

PSR had 53 individuals enrolled in services during the month of October, which is 1 higher than 

September.  Highest day of attendance was 37 and lowest was 20.  Current wait list is 20. The 

program is happy to report of 2 individuals graduating on to working with the Department of 

Rehabilitative Services and Mental Health Skill Builder providers in the community and no 

longer requiring PSR services.   

 

Goal to meet defined daily and monthly targets and explore reasons when not met to 

improve show rates and billable services 

 

PACT was unable to meet monthly revenue target for October due to vacant positions and 

extended medical leave o a staff member.  PACT’s current enrollment is 88.  12 individuals are 

currently in jail or hospital and continue to be monitored.  60 Individuals have active Medicaid.  

5 individuals are awaiting Medicaid benefits.  I individual was discharge per request.  Another 

individual was transitioned back to lesser intensive services.  

 

PACT Forensic did exceed their monthly revenue target. Great job Forensic PACT! 

18 Individuals are enrolled under the Forensic Enhancement.  There were 3 recent discharges 

and program is actively   

 

Bright Beginnings exceeded their monthly billing target for October. 2 individuals remain with 

no payer.  12 assessments were completed and 4 new intakes as well as 8 annual and 6 month 

reviews. Keep up the great work!  

 

ACOS Medication Management Services and Therapy Services again were unable to meet 

monthly targets due to vacant positions.   

ACOS did complete 88 Intakes out of 145 scheduled for October.  

67 Psychiatric Evaluations were attended with only 5 no shows. (93% show rate) 

27 Hospital Discharge Individuals were seen with 5 no shows out the 32 scheduled.   (84% show 

rate)     

 

 

 



22 
 

 

Medical Services Division will enhance our collaborative relationship with our community 

partners to strengthen our individual referral base, improve communication when 

transferring care and maximize revenue 

 

Bright Beginnings continues their “open door” policy accepting referrals from private MHSB 

providers in the community and maintaining collateral contact to coordinate care.  Individuals 

can walk in the door and request referral for services, and PSR has a good relationship with 

several of the private MHSB providers in the localities.   

 

ACOS continues to work closely with local hospitals, jails and primary care providers including 

SEVHS, Community Free Clinic of NN, Brentwood, EVMS and the Lackey Clinic to ensure 

individuals at risk are seen timely and communication is provided for optimal care for the 

individuals we serve.     

 

PACT collaborated with Riverside Behavioral Health Center in order to improve Coordination 

of care upon discharge from hospital.  

 

Medical Services Division will stay abreast and meet the constant changing demands of 

Managed Care Organizations, Magellan, DMAS, Medicare, GAP and Licensing entities 

 

All programs are staying alert to information pertaining to the CCC Plus transition and is 

responding to the Managed Care Organizations.  There has been a noted increase in prior 

authorizations for medications.   

 

PSR continues to assist individuals in need of transportation.  PSR Driver transported 6 

individuals to program every day as Govern Assistance Program (GAP) does not cover 

transportation services.    

 

Medical Services had a surprise Board of Pharmacy visit for review of Medication policies, 

inspection of medication rooms and review of contract with Genoa Pharmacy Services.  No 

citations were issued.  Great job everyone! 

                 

2. Professional Development 

 

Dr. Gill, MD and Anne Whitaker, RNC attended the Annual VACSB meeting October 5 and 6. 

 

Connie Vasta, PACT Manager, attended “Housing Instability Risk: How to recognize it and what 

to do when you see it”. 

 

Tammy Blackshear, Office Associate attended Introduction to Microsoft Excel on October 16. 

 

 Elisabeth Bauswell, LPC attended Clinical Supervision Training at Eastern Mennonite 

University. 

  

Laurie Ratledge, RN and Kristina Provenzo, LPN attended The Habits of Stress-Resilient People 

in Newport News October 13. 

 



23 
 

 

Dr. Gill and Dr. Moshin attended the American Psychiatric Association PSV Fall Meeting: 

Disruption: Managing in a World of Chaos. 

 

Natalie Harris, LPC, participated in Board of Counseling professional meeting last month.  

 
CRISIS SERVICES 

Ryan Dudley, Director 

 
Strategic Objective #1: To continue to develop the administrative systems and service array necessary 

to maintain and further the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board’s reputation as THE 

premier provider in the context of the changing Virginia’s behavioral health system. 

 

 Crisis Services will continues to ensure responsiveness to crisis assessment and intervention 

services to ensure timely and critical response. 

 

 Emergency Services, through October have conducted 1,089 assessments prior to 

Commitment Hearing.  This includes 292 conducted September with 69.8% resulting in 

psychiatric hospitalization (13.8% voluntary & 55.2% involuntary) and 6.5% referred to a 

regional crisis stabilization program.  In October.  During October, 279 crisis assessments 

were conducted, 66.2% resulting in psychiatric hospitalization (12.3% voluntary and 53.9% 

involuntary) and 11.1% to referral to a regional crisis stabilization program.  In addition to 

the aforementioned crisis assessments, ES conducted 90 assessments at Commitment Hearing 

in September and 123 in October. 

 

 Emergency Services’ crisis assessments were primarily requested by one of the five 

emergency rooms, local police and Riverside Behavioral Health Center (RBHC).   

o In September, emergency rooms accounted for 62.6%, police 11.7%, and RBHC 14%.  

The remainder of 11.7% include:  Self, Family, Jail, internal CSB programs, or 

categorized as “Other”.  

o In October, emergency rooms accounted for 63.7%, police 9.4%, and RBHC again 

14%.  The remainder of 12.9% once again included Self, Family, Jail, internal CSB 

programs, or categorized as “Other”.   

o While crisis assessments were primarily provided for adults, 9.7% in September were 

for individuals 18 years old younger, 24 of which led to psychiatric hospitalization (6 

voluntary, 18 involuntary). In October they accounted for 9.1%, 21 to hospitalization 

(7 voluntary, 21 involuntary).  To enhance integration, a daily list of children and 

adolescents screened by ES is provided to Youth and Family Services for engagement 

in Child and Adolescent Mobile Crisis for follow up, as appropriate.   

 

 Emergency Services’ Utilization of Safety Net Beds (SNB) at State Hospitals continue to be 

closely monitored by H-NNCSB, DBHDS and the HPR-5 Region while identifying and 

addressing barriers to access of emergency psychiatric beds for individuals with complex 

needs.  The number of SNB included 4 in September and 5 in October to Eastern State 

Hospital (ESH), a significant reduction from 14 needed in August.   

 



24 
 

 

 The Regional Crisis Stabilization Center (RCSC) has continued work to enhance 

Recovery-Oriented Services for our 11-bed resident stabilization unit.  Recent enhancements 

include: 

o Ron Clark, LCSW joined the program as the Manager, Crisis Stabilization for the 

Regional Crisis Stabilization Center on November 1st 

o Pamela Williams as Peer Recovery Specialist II beginning October 1s. 

o Monique Jones, Therapist, who began with RCSC at the conclusion of August.   

 

 The Regional Crisis Stabilization Center (RCSC) continues to focus on utilization and 

access to residential crisis stabilization services: 

o RCSC continues to maintain high utilization of services with their 11-bed capacity 

with an 88.7% utilization September and 91% in October. The following represents 

the number of individuals from each Region-5 CSB served in September and October: 

          

CSB September October 

H-NN 17 23 

Norfolk 10 11 

Chesapeake  5 2 

Portsmouth 5 3 

Western 

Tidewater 

3 3 

Eastern Shore 2 1 

Va. Beach 5 5 

Colonial 2 4 

MPNN  1 2 

TOTAL 51 54 

 

 Adult Forensics Services continues to focus efforts to ensure individual’s involved in the 

criminal justice system have access to behavioral health services to address their needs: 

 

o Crisis Intervention Training Assessment Center (CITAC) was suspended on 

October 6th as we evaluate a more comprehensive approach for a “Best Practice 

CITAC Model”.  Due to increasing pressure for all individuals being  “medically 

cleared” prior to consideration for psychiatric admission, our utilization had 

significantly decreased who were able to more expeditiously address by 

transporting individuals under Emergency Custody Order (ECO) directly to the 

Emergency Rooms for medical clearance.  We are scheduled to meet with 

Riverside Regional Medical Center (RRMC) on November 9th to discuss their 

interest in partnering with a new proposal that may more effectively meet our 

community’s needs. 

o C.O.R.E. Program, a DCJS Grant focused on strengthening Forensic Services in 

the facility, including release planning and transitional case management.   

 The addition of our case manager provides an opportunity to enhance 

release planning and community reintegration for individuals identified as 

seriously mentally ill, including intensive case management efforts 

focused on housing, psychiatric care, and benefit.  Our case manager, Ms. 

Moore is currently working with 4 individuals who have transitioned out 



25 
 

 

of HRRJ with 28 others that we anticipate will require services for reentry 

within the next 90 days.  

 In partnership with Joy Cipriano, Director of Property Management and 

Resource Development, the C.O.R.E. Inn has been established as a 

transitional housing resource for individuals released from HRRJ while 

also assessing and pursuing permanent and sustainable housing options. 

o Jail Diversion, Re-entry is currently serving 61 individuals with preparation of their 

reentry from correctional custody, 16 who are currently receiving CSB psychiatry. In 

addition, two individuals with mental illness was successfully diverted from 

correctional custody to more appropriate community based treatment in October. 

o Restoration Services presently serves ten (10) cases, which includes one new Court 

Order and two new dispositions in October. 

 

 Crisis Services will examine workflow, infrastructure and staffing to assure rapid access to 

treatment.  

 

 Inner Reflections, delivery of substance use disorder related services provided within 

HCJ Annex, transitioned to the Adult Forensic Team in July.  Mr. Barker and Crisis 

Director has met with HCJ Programs Administrator in an effort to better align services 

with the goals to:  

 Increase the number of individuals served. 

 Better align services with the ARTS Division 

 Focus on treatment readiness programing with psychoeducation, brief-therapeutic 

intervention, and linkage and engagement in community based services, post 

release.  

  

 Crisis Services will monitor financial processes tied to service delivery to assure revenue 

projections are met. 

 

 Crisis Services Directors continues to meet with Program Managers regularly as well as 

Financial Services monthly, to review their productively, revenue targets and to ensure that 

all services are billed accurately. 

 

 Crisis Services will continue to provide up-to-date training to staff to meet the changing needs 

of the behavioral healthcare environment, which includes public policy changes, population 

demographics and various evidence-based practices that better meet the needs of the people we 

will serve.  

 

 Emergency Services & Regional Crisis Stabilization Center staff will be represented at a Trauma 

Triangle Training to be held in Norfolk on November 17th.  

 

Strategic Objective #2: To pursue further revenue diversification and expansion of services, supports, 

and prevention activities so that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board can improve 

the quality of life for the individuals, families, and communities we serve. 

 

 Adult Forensic Services’ Manger, Dean Barker is an active participate with a Mental 

Health Treatment Court Advisory Planning Committee.  The Newport News Sheriff’s 

Office, on behalf of the Hampton-Newport News Criminal Justice Board (HNNCJB) has 



26 
 

 

submitted a grant proposal requesting funding for a Coordinator.  Previously, Mr. Barker 

accompanied a team to meet with Chesapeake reviewing their operations.    

 

Strategic Objective #3: To celebrate and communicate the Hampton-Newport News Community 

Services Board’s performance and reputation as a center of excellence and center of influence, through 

ongoing engagement of the community we serve.   

 

 Crisis Services will continue to work with our community partners and stakeholders to enhance 

services, to improve service accessibility and increase service utilization in all program area. 

 

 Crisis Intervention Training (CIT) Mr. Dean Barker and CIT Team received a letter of 

acknowledgement from Senator Mark Warner for their work with the Colonial CIT 

program’s development (SO#1&2). 

    

 Crisis Intervention Training is scheduled for December 4 – 8, 2017 and will include local 

police and sheriff’s deputies in addition to personnel from the Newport News Fire 

Department, Christopher Newport University, Virginia State Police, the Newport News City 

Security and the US Marshal’s Service.  Delegate Mike Mullin has agreed to speak to the 

class at graduation on the 8th.  

   

Other Items of interest 

  

 Gina O’Halloran, ES Manager, continues to represent H-NNCSB on the Region 5 Emergency 

Services Council held each month.  The most recent meeting, was held on November 3rd at H-

NNCSB.  The Council continues to work with Eastern State Hospital (ESH) regarding utilization 

of Safety Net Beds, barriers accessing private and public psychiatric beds timely.  Members of 

the ES Council will be presenting the HPR 5 Regional Leadership Team (RLT) on November 

6th. 

 

 Crisis Director attended the VACSB Statewide Emergency Services Conference held in 

Roanoke on October 26th and 27th.   

 

 RCSC participated in the Statewide Crisis Stabilization Unit (CSU) meeting, on October 24th 

which included all 16 CSB operated programs and DBHDS representatives.  The group will 

continue to meet every 6-months.  A Regional Committee Meeting for HPR-5 CSBs, 

including H-NNCSB, Norfolk CSB and Virginia Beach CSB is scheduled for November 17th.   

  



27 
 

 

 
 

 

 

MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
Thursday, October 26, 2017, 5:00 p.m. 

CSB Campus Board Room, 2nd Floor 

 

 

Present: Mrs. Rogers, presiding; Mrs. Dahlen, Mrs. Davidson, Mr. Gray, Jr.,                              

Mrs. Killebrew, Mr. Morehouse, Sheriff Roberts, Dr. Spencer, Mrs. Stewart,      

Mr. Supler, and Mrs. Williams Hunt 

 

Staff: Mrs. Christian, Mrs. Barnes, Dr. Bond, Ms. Cipriano, Ms. Cox, Mr. Crisp,            

Dr. Gill, Mrs. Hogge, Mrs. Hunt, Ms. Jackson, Mr. Jones, Ms. Kerigan, Ms. 

Lambert, Mr. Mullins, Ms. Newlon, Mr. Simons, Ms. Stewart, Ms. Thompson, 

Ms. Whitaker, Ms. Wiggins, Mr. Wiggins, Ms. Williams, Ms. S. Williams, and 

Ms. Mercado 

 

Guests: None 

 
CALL TO 

ORDER Members of the Board of Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community 

Services Board held a meeting on Thursday, October 26, 2017.  Mrs. Wanda 

Rogers, Board Chair, called the meeting to order at 5:02 p.m., and welcomed 

Members of the Board, guests, and staff to the FY18 Meeting of the Board of 

Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board. 

 
REMARKS OF  

THE CHAIR Mrs. Rogers remarked that as announced at the September Meeting of the Board 

of Directors, the meeting would include individual photographs of Members of 

the Board of Directors.  She advised Members that if they had not already signed 

up, to please see Ms. Mercado at the end of the Board Meeting to confirm their 

picture time.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-1 



28 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 2 

 

 

Introduction of 

Guests Mrs. Christian informed Members of the Board that while there were more staff 

present than usual at the meeting that evening, these individuals were Peer 

Recovery Specialists who were there to support Ms. Alethea Lambert, Peer 

Recovery Coordinator, who would be providing Members with an overview of 

Peer Recovery Services.  While Mrs. Christian thanked everyone for attending the 

meeting, she advised that introductions of Peers Support Specialists would be 

saved for the presentation. 

 
PUBLIC 

COMMENT  There was no public comment received from the audience during the Meeting of 

the Board of Directors. 

 
ACTION ITEMS 

 

A-1. A Motion was made to accept the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting held 

on Thursday, September 28, 2017, as presented.   

 

Action There being no comments or discussion, the Minutes of the Board of Directors 

Meeting held on Thursday, September 28, 2017, were approved as presented. 

 
BOARD STANDING  

COMMITTEE  

REPORTS 

 

Budget, Finance 

And Audit  As reported by Mrs. Pixie Killebrew, Committee Chair, Members of the Budget, 

Finance and Audit Committee held their last meeting earlier in the week on 

Monday, October 23, 2017, at 4:00 p.m.  She noted that at their meeting, Members 

received updated information from Ms. Denise Newlon, Chief Financial Officer, 

on the newly developed agency Dashboard System, and also thoroughly reviewed 

the Financial Statements through August 31, 2017, for the Hampton-Newport 

News Community Services Board (H-NNCSB), the H-NNCSB Property 

Company, Inc., Share-A-Homes of the Virginia Peninsula, and the Trust for 

Disabled Persons. 

 

  Briefly, Ms. Newlon continued that in connection with the agency’s 2017-2021 

Strategic Plan initiatives, a team of staff representing multiple agency programs, 

developed a collection of reports that can be accessed by agency leadership via its 

newly developed Dashboard System.  She stated that if Members would 

remember, some time ago, a Dashboard System was to be developed to allow 

programs to monitor daily operations and services rendered, maximize revenue,  

A-1 



29 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 3 

 

 

  and improve organization’s efficiency in service provisions.  Additionally, 

Members of the Board were informed that it is anticipated that the new Dashboard 

System would also provide the agency with the ability to evolve and improve its 

utilization of captured data while remaining competitive.  Mrs. Killebrew shared 

that Ms. Newlon advised them that through the use of the Dashboard System, 

multiple reports were more easily accessed, key information was quickly 

displayed, and the system was extremely helpful in reviewing large amounts of 

data in a shorter timeframe.  

 

  Moreover, Mrs. Killebrew remarked that during their Committee Meetings, 

Members thoroughly reviewed agency Financial Statements through August 31, 

2017, for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board and its 

entities.  She continued that during their review, Ms. Newlon reported that the 

agency’s operating reserve balance remains stable, and informed Members that 

CSB earned revenue was at 85%, of the monthly budget.  It was also noted that 

the H-NNCSB remains under budget in its Health Insurance expenses for staff.  

Furthermore, Mrs. Killebrew announced that the Committee’s review of the 

Balance Sheets for the CSB and its entities showed that the agency has remained 

financially strong.  In closing, Mrs. Killebrew directed Members of the Board to 

please mark their calendars for the next meeting of the Budget, Finance and Audit 

Committee scheduled for Monday, November 13, 2017, at 4:00 p.m., where the 

Committee would receive its Annual Independent Financial Audit conducted by 

the auditing firm of Robinson, Farmer, Cox Associates. 

 

 
Community Relations/ 

Governmental 

Affairs  Mrs. Beatrice Dahlen, Committee Chair, reported that Members of the 

Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee held their meeting on 

Monday, October 23, 2017, at 4:30 p.m., where they discussed advocacy efforts 

with Elected Officials, Local Initiatives, Board of Director Events, and received 

updates from advocacy groups.  She continued that during their meeting, 

Members of the Committee discussed the postponement of the Legislative 

Breakfast that was scheduled for October.  For Member information, Mrs. Dahlen 

advised that while the event was postponed due to the limited availability of 

Elected Officials, they would be pleased to note that as staff research a new date 

for the Breakfast event, the Committee was moving forward with scheduling One-

On-One Meetings with Elected Officials in their continuing efforts to provide 

education and updates regarding behavioral health needs and services provided 

by the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board.  She informed 

Members of the Board that additional information regarding both events would 

be provided to them as dates were confirmed.   

A-1 



30 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 4 

 

 

 Additionally, Mrs. Dahlen informed Members that Mrs. Sherry Hunt, 

Communications and Business Development Director, informed the Committee 

that the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board would be the first 

CSB in the Commonwealth to introduce a new public Media Campaign that will 

focus on the opioid epidemic and provide information regarding treatment 

services available at the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board.  

Moreover, she reported that the campaign, which is spearheaded by Mr. Freddie 

Simons, Prevention Director, would include public service announcements in 

every movie theater in Hampton and Newport News, as well as having billboards 

in prominent locations in our two cities.  She announced that updates on the 

progress of the public Media Campaign would be provided, as available, and that 

Members of the Board would hear more on the Campaign later in the Board 

Meeting. 

 

 Mrs. Dahlen stated that Members of the Community Relations / Governmental 

Affairs Committee also discussed upcoming Board of Director Events which were 

highlighted for Members of the Board of Directors in their October Board 

Package. In particular, they shared feedback regarding the recent VACSB 2017 

Public Policy Conference held in Williamsburg.  She remarked that the   

Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board received many public 

accolades from several speakers, Legislators, and Board Members from other 

CSBs alike.  Mrs. Dahlen added that the organization was complimented for its 

leadership, innovative accomplishments, and advocacy during the Conference.   

She advised that the Agency was also acknowledged at that the Board Member 

Networking Reception which was noted to be very helpful and provided an 

opportunity for Board Members from across the state to share their experiences.    

 

 In closing on her report, Mrs. Dahlen reported that Members of the Committee 

received updates regarding the National Alliance on Mental Illness (NAMI), and 

the Substance Abuse and Recovery Alliance (SAARA), two H-NNCSB agency 

advocacy groups.  Members were directed to find information from the SAARA 

included in their Red Folders for their review.  She also asked that Members of 

the Board of Directors please be advised that the next meeting of Members of the 

Community Relations / Governmental Affairs Committee was scheduled for 

Monday, November 13, 2017, at 4:30 p.m., and that Members of the Committee 

would be very happy to have Members of the Board join them. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-1 
 



31 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 5 

 

CONSIDERATION 

ITEMS Members of the Board were informed by Mrs. Rogers of the formal invitations to 

the Hampton Drug Treatment Court and Veteran Track Graduation Ceremony 

were in their Red Folders.   She noted that with the Ceremony being scheduled on  

 Monday, October 30th, at 3:00 PM, in the Hampton Circuit Court, Members who  

 are available to attend the event to please confirm their attendance with Ms. 

Mercado by the end of the meeting that day.  Additionally, Members of the Board 

were directed by Mrs. Rogers to communicate with Ms. Mercado their availability 

to attend our 28th Annual Thanksgiving Luncheon, scheduled for Wednesday, 

November 8th, at 11:30 a.m. at the Hampton Roads Convention Center. 

 
INFORMATION 

ITEMS 

 
Opioid Epidemic Mrs. Christian called the attention of Members of the Board of Directors to a 

couple of newspaper articles provided for them in their Red Folders which 

addressed the Opioid Epidemic.  She pointed out a Letter to the Editor that she 

wrote on the subject, as well as a SAARA meeting article which featured several 

of our Peer Recovery Specialists.  Mrs. Christian thanked the Peers for the work 

that they do in sharing the hope of recovery, and for being living examples of what 

recovery looks like. 

 
H-NNCSB  

Employee  

Appreciation  

Event   Mrs. Christian also used this opportunity to thank those Members of the Board 

who were able to attend the H-NNCSB Employee Appreciation Event, despite the 

rain.  She reported that the event included 500 employees who attended 

throughout the day.  Mrs. Christian noted that there were pictures of the event on 

the H-NNCSB web page.  She was pleased that staff enjoyed the annual event, 

and thanked the planning committee lead by Mrs. Kim Thompson, HR Director.  

 
Hampton Drug  

Treatment Court &  

Veterans Track 

Graduation  Members were informed by Mrs. Christian that Judge Wilford Taylor will be 

recognized at the upcoming Hampton Drug Treatment Court & Veterans Track 

Graduation Ceremony.  She advised that Judge Taylor was the Founder Judge of 

the Drug Treatment Court Program and was very instrumental in getting the 

program started.  Members were advised that Judge Taylor would be retiring in 

November and will be recognized by staff at the graduation to show our 

appreciation. 

A-1 



32 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 6 

 

 

H-NNCSB Employee 

Open Enrollment Mrs. Christian advised Members that the H-NNCSB Employee Open Enrollment 

was coming soon and that while costs for health insurance had increased about 

4%, the H-NNCSB will not pass this increase on to employees.  She noted that 

this will be the 2nd year in a row that the agency has been able to not pass on such 

an increase.  She added that the United Way Campaign was also going on, noting 

that the H-NNCSB had a goal to raise $10,000 for the campaign for local charities, 

and invited interested Members of the Board of Directors to participate. 

 
PEER RECOVERY 

SERVICES 

PRESENTATION Members of the Board of Directors received an overview of the Peer Recovery 

Services Program from Ms. Alethea Lambert, Peer Recovery Coordinator.  In her 

presentation, Ms. Lambert provided Members of the Board with the overview of 

Peer Recovery Services from SAMSHA, adding that the program supports 

individuals as they embark on their journey towards recovery.  She continued 

advising Members that most of our Peer Recovery Specialists are certified in 

providing this services. The Hampton-Newport News Peer Recovery Services 

Team follow five Core Principles and Values in their effort to not only ensure that 

a safe place is provided for individuals dealing with addiction to discuss trauma, 

but to make sure they are empowered in spite of their trauma. 

 

   Ms. Lambert also advised Members that there were also 11 Core Competencies 

aligned with the five Core Principles and Values, noting these Competencies as 

the foundation of the work that is done by Peer Recovery Specialists and the 

training that they receive.    Members were also informed that individuals facing 

addiction were informed of Community Resources and that Peer Recovery 

Services are delivered within the agency as well as other organizations within the 

Virginia delivery system as a whole. 

 

   Following the presentation, Ms. Lambert introduced Peer Recovery Staff to 

Members of the Board individually.   Ms. Lambert and Peer Recovery Specialists 

were applauded by Members of the Board. 

 
PROGRAM  

HIGHLIGHTS In the area of Program Highlights, Mrs. Christian advised that in efforts to prevent 

redundancy and lengthy Board packets, Members will receive Clinical Director 

updates one month and reports from the Administrative Directors the following 

month. 

 

A-1 
 



33 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 7 

 

 

Thanksgiving  

Updates  In response to a question regarding the H-NNCSB 28th Annual Thanksgiving 

Luncheon, Mrs. Christian reminded that Mrs. Cynthia Romero will be the Guest 

Speaker and is a leader in the opioid epidemic field.  Members also briefly 

discussed tables and deadlines where Members were informed that donations for 

tables can be made up to the date of the event. 

 
Media Campaign Further under Program Highlights, Mrs. Christian introduced Mr. Freddie 

Simons, Prevention Services Director, who provided Members with an update the 

Opioid Media Campaign. Mr. Simons noted that the U.S. Congress appropriated 

funds to begin the process of putting into place opioid prevention strategies.  He 

continued that the Commonwealth of Virginia received federal funding of which 

the H-NNCSB received $60,000, to our Prevention Services Program, with the 

guidance to implement a Media Campaign to increase knowledge about opioid 

abuse in order to educate and impact the attitude about opioid use.   

 

   Mr. Simon reported on the initial process which included a review of a similar 

campaign in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania which is ahead of Virginia in 

this area.  He continued that following reasonable negotiations, H-NNCSB will 

be the first entity in Virginia to use this specific model.  Mr. Simons provided 

Members of the Board with a brief PowerPoint presentation where he provided 

some materials that would be used, along with a small video promotion that would 

be shown in movie theatres around the Cities of Hampton and Newport News.   

Mr. Simons announced that the Media Campaign would run for 22 weeks or 6 

months, adding that staff was also pursuing an agreement with Hampton Roads 

Transit (HRT) to advertise on their busses, along with other choices such as 

billboards and partnering with community partners such as the Health Dept., 

Hospitals, and the Dept. of Behavioral Health, etc. which may help offset some 

of the costs in doing the advertisings.  In response to a few questions, Mr. Simons 

advised that smaller posters would be available, and that staff would be eager to 

have a conversation with the Cox network and/or public television as suggested 

by Members of the Board. Mr. Simons was thanked for his presentation by 

Members of the Board. 

 
CLOSING  

REMARKS  In closing, Mrs. Rogers asked Members of the Board to take time to review the 

FY18 Monthly Calendars provided in the back of the Board Package for 

upcoming Standing Board Committee Meetings and CSB Events.  She also 

reiterated that Members provide Ms. Mercado with their availability to attend the 

Hampton Drug Treatment and Veterans Track Graduation Ceremony, and the 28th 

 

 

A-1 



34 
 

 

Board of Directors Meeting 

October 26, 2017 

Page 8 

 

 

   Annual H-NNCSB Thanksgiving Luncheon.  In response to a question from a 

Member of the Board, Mrs. Christian responded that while a group picture of 

Members of the Board of Directors was scheduled for after the meeting, it will be 

rescheduled since all Members of the Board were not present at the meeting. 

 

 
ADJOURNMENT  There being no further comments, questions, or business to discuss, the Board of 

Directors for the Hampton-Newport News Community Services Board was 

adjourned at 5:55 p.m.  
 

 

 

 

   _________________________ ________________________  

   Mrs. Wanda Rogers   Mrs. Beatrice Dahlen  

   Chair     Secretary  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Submitted by GMercado 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A-1 



35 
 

 

FY18 Monthly Planner 
 

November 2017 
 

 

02   2:00 pm Eastern State Hospital Discharge Team 

06   9:00 am HPR-V Executive Directors Regional Meeting 

06   2:00 pm Myers & Stauffer Conference Call 

08 11:30 am H-NNCSB Thanksgiving Luncheon 

09 10:00 am Riverside Regional Medical Center 

09   2:00 pm Mrs. Evelyn Steward, NAMI 

13   1:30 pm Newport News CPMT  

13   4:00 pm Budget, Finance and Audit Committee 

13   4:30 pm Committee Community Relations / Governmental Affairs 

14 11:30 am  Executive Leadership Team 

14   1:00 pm Steering Committee Meeting 

15   2:00 pm H-NNCSB Media Campaign – VA Dept. of Health /Riverside 

16   2:00 pm  Hampton CMPT 

16   5:00 pm  CSB Board of Directors 

16   5:00 pm  H-NN Community Criminal Justice Board 

21 12:00 pm  Meeting with Board Chair 

23 & 24  CSB Holiday – Thanksgiving Observed 

27   9:00 am  H-NNCSB Management Team 

29   2:00 pm  Mr. William Ritchie, Christopher Newport University 

30   Executive Director Retreat, Henrico 

 

  



36 
 

 

 

FY18 Monthly Planner 
 

December 2017 
 

 

 

04   9:00 am HPR-V Executive Directors Regional Meeting 

04   3:00 pm  Newport News Drug Treatment Court Graduation 

05 11:30 am Executive Leadership Team 

06   4:00 pm Board Quality Management Committee 

07   9:30 am Eastern State Hospital   

08   8:30 am Riverside Regional Medical Center 

11   1:30 pm Newport News CPMT  

12 10:00 am  VACSB Executive Director Forum, Richmond 

15 11:00 am Consumer Family Member Advisory Committee 

18   9:00 am  H-NNCSB Management Team 

18   4:00 pm Budget, Finance and Audit Committee 

18   4:30 pm Community Relations / Governmental Affairs 

19 11:30 am  Executive Leadership Team 

21   2:00 pm  Hampton CMPT 

21   5:00 pm  CSB Board of Directors 

25   CSB Holiday Observed 

 


